
MAKAKILO/KAPOLEI/HONOKAI HALE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 34

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMISSION  925 DILLINGHAM BOULEVARD, SUITE 160  HONOLULU, HAWAII, 96817
PHONE (808) 768-3710  FAX (808) 768-3711  INTERNET: http://www.honolulu.gov/nco

Oahu’s Neighborhood Board System – Established 1973

DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY JUNE 27, 2018
KAPOLEI HALE – CONFERENCE ROOM

CALL TO ORDER: Chair Dudley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Quorum was established with six (6)
members present. Note – This nine member board requires five (5) members to establish quorum and take official
Board action.

Board Members Present: Dean Kalani Capelouto, Troy C. Cullen (arrived at 7:15 p.m.), Kioni Dudley, Mick Ferreira,
Jack Legal, Evelyn Souza, Scott Stensrud, Kanani Wond (arrived at 7:21 p.m.), and Thad Spreg (Appointed at this
meeting).

Board Members Absent: All Board Members were present for the meeting.

Guests: Phyllis Shimabakuro Geiser (Governor’s Representative), Meg Turner (Senator Gabbard’s Office), Geanine
Gomes (Senator Shimabukuro’s Office), Timothy Hiu (Deputy Director Department of Planning and Permitting), Bev
Brennan (BPBC), Victor Flint (NAVFAC), William Rodriguez and Donovan Lazarus (AMVETS), Steve Vendt
(Hawaiian Railway), Rian Adachi (Board of Water Supply), Jeff Moniz (University of Hawaii West Oahu), Shawn
Nakamura (Honolulu Fire Department), Kent Fernandez (Honolulu Police Department), Pat Lee (HART), Shawn
Takemoto (Office of Elections), Heidi Armstrong (Department of Education), Carl Brooks (Island Triathlon and Bike),
Brittany Yadao, Jesse Tibayan, Steve Motchnik, Ulukoa Duhaylonsod, Frank Genadio, Rose Shin, Svea Breckberg,
Frank Genadio, Jame Schaedel (Residents); Chris Naylon (Neighborhood Commission Office).

ROLE CALL: Naylon carried out a roll call. Six (6) members were present.

Hearing no objections, Chair Dudley moved to Agenda item: City Monthly Reports.

CITY MONTHLY REPORTS
Honolulu Fire Department (HFD): Captain Shawn Nakamura reported the following:

 May 2018 Statistics: There was one (1) structure fire, four (4) wild land fires, one (1) cooking fire, 16 activated
alarms, 138 medical, and six (6) motor vehicle crashes/collisions.

 Safety Tip: Planning for a Hurricane:
The Honolulu Fire Department encourages every family to take necessary steps to prepare for the
hurricane season that runs from Friday, June 1, 2018 until Friday, November 30, 2018. Everyone
should have a plan in place, a survival kit, and a way of staying informed on impending disasters.
Additional information can be found on the City and County of Honolulu’s Department of Emergency
Management’s website at www.honolulu.gov/dem.

Honolulu Police Department: Lieutenant Kent Fernandez reported the following:
 May 2018 Statistics: There were 71 motor vehicle thefts, 44 burglaries, 183 thefts, and 70 UEMV’s. There

were 7,848 total calls for service.
Questions and comments followed: Increase in Thefts: Chair Dudley noted that all the statistics have risen and
Fernandez stated that summer months have a larger amount of issues due to the large amount of adolescents without
school. Fernandez noted that HPD has made recent arrests that should help lower the amount of issues within the
region.
Kamaaha Avenue: Stensrud asked about the speeding issues within Kamaaha Avenue and Fernandez stated that
HPD has started taking precautions within the region and that HPD will report back.

Board of Water Supply (BWS): No representative was present, Ferreira read the following report:
Main Break: There were no main breaks reported.
General Water Announcement - Hurricane Season: Hurricane Season (Friday, June 1 thru Friday, November
30, 2018) has begun, and we should all be prepared for any emergency. The Honolulu Board of Water Supply
(BWS) would like to give you some tips for storing water in case of emergencies: Your Emergency
Preparedness Kit should include at least one (1) gallon of water stored, per person, per day for at least



Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

MAKAKILO/KAPOLEI/HONOKAI HALE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 34 WEDNESDAY, JUNE 27, 2018
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 2 OF 7

fourteen (14) days for drinking and sanitation purposes. The easiest and most efficient way to prepare and
store your emergency water supply, is to:

 Take water from the tap. We recommend you use a clean container to store water. Try not to use
containers that have previously been used to store food with strong odors, as the water will pick up the
odors during storage.

 Disinfect your containers by washing them thoroughly with soap and water.
 To ensure the container is sanitized, use one (1) capful of a mild liquid bleach to one (1) gallon of

water, then rinse thoroughly.
 Fill your container with water from the tap; fill it to the top, keeping a minimal amount of air between

the water and the cap.
 To ensure that your water is safe to drink, add one (1) drop of mild liquid bleach, per gallon of water;

cap and store it in a cool, dark, place.
 If you plan to store water for four weeks or longer, add one-half (1/2) capful of mild liquid bleach per

gallon of water; cap and store in a cool, dark, place.
 For more information on water emergency preparedness, visit our website, at

www.boardofwatersupply.com.
 On another matter, Summer starts this month, Every Summer, for more than a decade. BWS has been

supplying its customers with an Annual Water Quality Report. The report will be mailed to all BWS
customers on record starting this month. They are also available online via the BWS website. Here's a direct
link to the report: www.boardofwatersupply.com/war. Once in the site, enter the address to which you want
a report.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Dudley motioned that the Wednesday, May 30, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes be
ADOPTED. The motion passed by UNANIMOUS CONSENT, 6-0-0; (AYE: Capelouto, Dudley, Ferreira, Legal,
Souza, and Stensrud; NAY: None; ABSTAIN: None).

Cullen arrived at 7:15 p.m., seven (7) members present.

COMMUNITY/BOARD CONCERNS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
Bicycle Centurion: Brooks informed the Board about a bicycle centurion that will be held on Sunday, July 18,
2018 from 8:00 a.m. until 12:00 p.m. There will be six (6) races. Please visit https://www.usacycling.org or
https://www.bicycleracinghawaii.org for additional information.

Board of Elections: Takemoto raised concerns about the lack of volunteers that have signed up for the 2018
Election process. Takemoto disseminated informational pamphlets and asked residents to visit
https://elections.hawaii.gov or contact the Board of Elections by email at elections@hawaii.gov or call (808)
453-8683 for any additional information.

Hurricane Preparedness: Breckberg noted the numerous inadequacies of Hawaii’s hurricane preparedness
plans. Breckberng stated that Hawaii residents are unaware of the cost and time needed to rebuild their
residence.

Hawaiian Railway Society: Vendt noted the current state of disrepair that persists within the Hawaii Railway
Society’s rail system and the Department of Transportation’s efforts to repave the area. Vendt noted that
there were several problems that are making the railway’s situation dire.

Kapolei Hale Parking: Shin raised concerns about the lack of signage within the Kapolei Hale parking lot.
Shin noted that their vehicle was almost locked within the parking lot before the Neighborhood Board Meeting.

Wond arrived at 7:21 p.m., eight (8) members present.

o Campbell-Kapolei Complex Area: Superintendent Armstrong noted the opening of two (2) Eastern
Kapolei Schools: East Kapolei Middle School and East Kapolei High School. East Kapolei Middle
School: Armstrong noted that East Kapolei Middle School will open during 2020-2021 and will start
with one (1) grade level due to a lack of funding. East Kapolei High School: Armstrong announced
that the East Kapolei High School will be opened during the 2022-2023 academic year. Armstrong
stated that the school is currently within the design phase and need additional funding for the
construction phase.



Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

MAKAKILO/KAPOLEI/HONOKAI HALE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 34 WEDNESDAY, JUNE 27, 2018
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 3 OF 7

o Track System: Wond asked and Armstrong answered that the track system within Campbell-Kapolei
schools cannot be dissolved unless school enrollment numbers rise.

o Makakilo Drive: Chair Dudley, Ferreira, and Spregg noted a need for proper signage within Makakilo
Drive that informs residents about the proper times for trash and bulky items pickup.

o Kapuuola Hula Festival: Wond noted that the Kapuuola Hula Festival will be held on Saturday, June
30, 2018 at the Puuokapolei hula mound from 10:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. Wond noted a need for
volunteers and participants for the event. Please visit
http://kapoleiheritage.org/events/2018/5/26/save-the-date-kapuuola-hula-festival for more
information.

o Junior Lifeguard Program: Wond informed the community of the City and County of Honolulu’s Ocean
Safety Junior Lifeguard Program. Wond noted the importance of the program for the community and
participants. Please visit http://www.honolulu.gov/esdosls/juniorlifeguards.html for the times and
locations of Junior Lifeguard programs.

Hearing no objections, Chair Dudley moved to Agenda Item: Election of Board Member.

ELECTION OF BOARD MEMBER
Chair Dudley asked the Board is there were any nominations for the vacant At-Large seat within the Board. Wond
motioned and Souza seconded for the candidacy of Thad Spreg. Spreg briefly noted his previous Board experience.
The motion passed by ROLL CALL VOTE (5-2-1). (AYE: Capelouto, Dudley, Souza, Wond, Ferreira; NAY: Cullen,
Legal; ABSTAIN: Stensrud.)

Chair Dudley called for a Recess at 7:38 p.m.
Thad Spreg was sworn in at 7:40 p.m.; nine (9) members present.
Chair Dudley Called the Meeting to Order at 7:42 p.m.

BOARD BUSINESS

Wednesday, July 25, 2018 Candidate Forum: Discussion and motions were as followed:
1. Scheduling: Chair Dudley noted there were scheduling issues with having the forum on the normal meeting

day, Thursday, July 25, 2018. Dudley asked that the Board have the forum earlier in hopes of having the
most amount of candidates appear.

2. Election: Spreg noted that the Board should only have one candidate forum due to a few elections being
decided by the primary election.

3. Opposition: Legal noted opposition for the forum due to the existence of other forums.
4. Invitations: Ferreira asked and Dudley answered that all candidates must be invited and allotted time to

speak.
5. Ballots: Capelouto asked that the Board sends ballots to the community to gain a better perspective of their

ideas about the candidates. Capelouto stated that the Board must invite all the candidates but noted that the
more candidates that attend, the less time candidates will have to speak.

6. Attendance: Cullen raised concerns about Representative attendance to Board meetings and noted that
Representatives are unlikely to attend the forum. Cullen believes that Representatives do not attend due to
Board bias.

Dudley motioned that the Candidate Forum be a timed speaking format. The motion was passed by HANDS
VOTE (6-3-0). (AYE: Legal, Souza, Capelouto, Dudley, Ferreira, Cullen, Wond; NAY: Stensrud; ABSTAIN: Spreg.)

Dudley motioned that all the State Representatives from the region will be invited to the forum. The motion
was passed by HANDS VOTE (7-0-2). (AYE: Capelouto, Dudley, Spreg, Legal, Souza, Stensrud, and Ferreira;
NAY: None; ABSTAIN: Cullen and Wond.)

7. Office of Hawaiian Affairs (OHA): Chair Dudley asked whether OHA should be included within their forum
and Capelouto noted their fears that the forum schedule may become congested and have insufficient time
for candidates to speak.



Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

MAKAKILO/KAPOLEI/HONOKAI HALE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 34 WEDNESDAY, JUNE 27, 2018
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 4 OF 7

Dudley motioned that all State Representatives be invited to the candidates’ forum. The motion passed by
HANDS VOTE (7-0-2). (AYE: Capelouto, Dudley, Spreg, Legal, Souza, Stensrud, Ferreira; NAY: None; ABSTAIN:
Cullen and Wond.)

Dudley motioned for the inclusion of the Governor and Lieutenant Governor races at the candidates’ forum.
The motion failed by HANDS VOTE (3-2-4). (Aye: Capelouto, Souza, and Wond; Nay: Cullen and Ferreira;
Abstain: Dudley, Spreg, Legal, Stensrud).

Wond left the meeting at 7:50 p.m., eight (8) members present.

Dudley motioned for OHA to be included within the Board’s candidates’ forum. The motion failed by HANDS
VOTE (1-1-6). (AYE: Dudley; NAY: Souza; ABSTAIN: Capelouto, Cullen, Spreg, Legal, Stensrud, and Ferreira.)

8. Congress: Chair Dudley asked about the inclusion on Congressional races and Capelouto noted there was
not enough time to include all these races.

9. Race Inclusion: Stensrud noted that there should be ample time for all candidates and asked that both the
House of Representatives and State Senators be invited to the forum. Capelouto asked the NCO
representative and Naylon noted that all candidates must be given the same amount of time to ensure
impartiality.

Dudley motioned for the inclusion of the National Congressional election within their candidates’ forum. The
motion failed by HANDS VOTE (1-4-3). (AYE: Dudley; NAY: Spreg, Capelouto, Ferreira, Souza; ABSTAIN:
Stensrud, Legal, and Cullen.)

Wond arrived at the meeting at 8:00 p.m., nine (9) members present.

10. Scheduling: Chair Dudley noted that the forum will have a times speaking section and include all the State
Representatives and asked when shall the forum occur. Dudley asked and Spreg noted that the meeting
could he held after a shortened Board meeting. Legal agreed that the meeting could be held in conjunction
with the Board meeting.

Dudley motioned to act as Chair Pro Tem during the candidates’ forum. The motion passed by UNANIMOUS
CONSENT.

Dudley motioned for there to be a Board Meeting in July. The motion passed by HANDS VOTE (8-0-1). (Aye:
Capelouto, Spreg, Dudley, Cullen, Legal, Souza, Stensrud, and Ferreira; Nay: NONE; Abstain: Wond)

Dudley motioned for the candidates’ forum be held on Wednesday, July 18, 2018. The motion failed by
HANDS VOTE (3-5-1). (AYE: Dudley, Spreg, and Souza; NAY: Capelouto, Cullen, Legal, Stensrud, and Ferreira;
ABSTAIN: Wond.)

Dudley motioned that the candidates’ forum be held on Wednesday, July 25, 2018. Hearing no objections the
motion passed by UNANIMOUS CONSENT.

11. Obscured Vision: Dudley noted that the sightlines within Kapolei Hale would be obscured during the Olelo
broadcast and noted that the Kapolei High School would be a better location for their candidates’ forum.

Dudley motioned that candidates’ forum be held at Kapolei High School. The motion passed by HANDS VOTE
(7-0-2). (AYE: Capelouto, Dudley, Cullen, Legal, Souza, Stensrud, Ferreira; NAY: None; ABSTAIN: Wond and
Spreg.)

12. Maile Election: Dudley noted that the Maile regional Representatives should be invited to the Board’s
candidates’ forum.

Dudley motioned for the inclusion of the Maile Senators electoral race in the candidates’ forum. The motion
passed by HANDS VOTE (8-0-1). (AYE: Capelouto, Cullen, Dudley, Spreg, Legal, Souza, Stensrud, and Ferreira;
NAY: None; ABSTAIN: Wond.)



Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

MAKAKILO/KAPOLEI/HONOKAI HALE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 34 WEDNESDAY, JUNE 27, 2018
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 5 OF 7

Barbers Point Naval Air Station Monument: Colonel Rob Moore was not present; John Vaughn gave the following
presentation:

1. Hunt Corp: Vaughn stated that Hunt Corp. has been in contact with the project and has offered assistance
with the monument.

2. Restoration: Colonel Moore assured that all the materials are present for the restoration of the monument
barring items that have been damaged before the monument’s removal.

3. Relocation: Vaughn has been in contact with the State as they attempt to relocate the monument within the
Kalaeloa Airport property.

4. Public Meeting: Vaughn noted that there will be a public meeting at the Kalaeloa Airport on Saturday, July
14, 2018 at 9:30 a.m. The meeting will contain a public tour of the property and the proposed locations before
receiving public input on the possible locations for the monument relocation.

Questions & Concerns:
1. Location: There was conversation on the best possible location for the monument and Vaughn noted that

they believe that best location for the monument would be near the parking lot. Vaughn believed this location
was best due to its prominence within the area and the foot traffic that would help deter future damages.
Ferreira agreed with Vaughn and stated that the monument should be placed in near the parking lot. Ferreira
also raised opposition for the placement of the monument behind the Kalaeloa Airport building.

2. Public Meeting: Vaughn reiterated the Saturday, July 14, 2018 meeting at 9:30 a.m. and stressed the
importance of public input while relocating the monument.

3. Community Support: Ferreira stated the importance of community support for the relocation of the monument
and noted that the State wants to find a location that is both safe and visible to the public.

Extension of Term Lengths: Chair Dudley noted that the Commission’s meeting for the extension of term lengths has
occurred before the Wednesday, June 27, 2018 meeting and stated that Board Members’ term lengths may be
lengthened to four (4) years.
Makakilo Drive Extension: Councilmember Kymberly Pine was unable to attend to meeting but Stensrud read the
following report from Pine’s Office:

This project is still in the design phase and is moving along, albeit not as fast as some would like. One
reason for the appearance of no activity is because the original design incorporated several elevated roadway
bridges. After meetings between the Department of Design and Construction, Department of Transportation
Services, and the architect RM Towill, it was decided to alter the route so that these bridges would not be
necessary and as such the projected cost of the overall project was reduced by approximately $30 million.
Also, secondary to this change Councilmember Pine was able to secure an additional $1.5 million in the
FY18 budget for preliminary engineering. This was added to the $4.5 million she secured in FY16 & FY17.
Based on the new design other preliminary assessments of the Project Engineering Phase such as acquiring
new permits and undertaking new environmental assessments had to be taken care of as the original
ones were now obsolete. Once the studies and final design phase has been completed and accepted,
then the process of acquiring the land will move forward.
DTS tells me: "The draft EA is expected to be completed and released for public comments by Fall of this
year. After all the environmental permits have been completed, the Final EA should be completed by
Summer of 2019. RM Towill is continuing to work on the design of new roadway which is currently
scheduled to be on the TIP for Federal Fiscal Year 2027 (after the Salt Lake Widening and Farrington
Highway Widening projects).
Please note that partial funding for this project does come from the Federal Government. I'm told they
only release $17 million dollars a year for State/City/County projects and will only release those funds
to projects where the engineering phases have been completed and construction is ready to begin.
When this project reaches that point, the Departments of Design and Construction and Transportation
Services will engage the Federal Government for those funds.
For further updates on this and other projects for our community please feel free to check on
Councilmember Pine's website www.councilmemberpine.com . I hope this addresses your concerns
regarding the current process for the Makakilo Drive Extension project. Should you have any further
questions please feel free to email us.

Souza left the meeting at 8:15 p.m., eight (8) members present.

Questions & Comments:
1. Apathy: Genadio noted apathy towards the completion of the Makakilo Drive extension project and stated

that the problem will persist until there is an emergency event. Genadio stated a need for community support
towards the completion of the project. Genadio felt the 27 year project has been a ridiculous waste of time.



Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

MAKAKILO/KAPOLEI/HONOKAI HALE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 34 WEDNESDAY, JUNE 27, 2018
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 6 OF 7

Chair Dudley asked and Genadio answered that residents should send all their concerns about Makakilo
Drive to the Oahu Metropolitan Planning Organization (OMPO) at oahumpo.com. Dudley noted that the 2027
completion date is outrageous. Wond asked for the reason why the project has not been completed and
noted that Makakilo has been forgotten. Wond stated that the 2027 completion date is unsatisfactory.

2. Kapolei Property Development: Genadio noted that the Kapolei Property Development is unwilling to finish
the project and support local businesses more than the community. Genadio stated that the project has been
planned since 2007/2008 but a lack of pressure on the contractors has allowed the project to go unfinished.
Genadio asked that Councilmember Pine, the Mayor’s representative, and the head of the Department of
Transportation Services be in attendance.

3. Extension Support: Legal noted the Board’s written resolution in support of the Makakilo extension project
but stated that the Board has a poor relationship with public officials. Legal stated a need for a better
relationship with local politicians. Legal spoke about a long history of failed public projects in the region and
thanked Genadio for their hard work. Legal noted that written resolutions and letters have been ineffective.
Brekberg noted that a community writing campaign may be the best way to gather support for the project.
Spreg noted that Pine has supported the Makakilo extension project and stated that the Chamber of
Commerce wants residents to drive through the shopping district.

4. Funding: Ferreira noted the extensive amounts of accidents that occur on Makakilo Drive and stated that
Pine has worked hard towards the finishing of the project. Ferreira stated that the project is short 300,000
dollars for the funding of the Design Phase and that the project is 70 percent complete with the design.

5. OMPO: Genadio stated that the key to the issue is the OMPO Policy Board and that Councilmember Brandon
Elephante is the Chair of the OMPO Policy Board.

6. Policy Board: Genadio stated that the OMPO Policy Board meets at Honolulu Hale. Please visit
http://www.oahumpo.org/category/news-announcements/ for any OMPO announcements and meeting
information. Genadio noted that other projects have been able to surpass the Makakilo project due to a lack
of support and is unsure how the Makakilo project has a lack of funding.

Cullen left the meeting at 8:45 p.m., seven (7) members present.

TREASURER’S REPORT: Wond reported a remaining balance of $239.43.

MONTHLY REPORTS

Mayor’s Representative Report: Deputy Director of the Department of Planning and Permitting Tim Hiu gave the
following report:

1. Satellite City Hall: The City and County of Honolulu system failure that occurred Monday, June 25, 2018
caused significant issues for the Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) and Satellite City Halls.

a. Satellite City Halls will be open on Saturday, June 30, 2018 from 8:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m. No Driving
Exams will be administered.

2. Mango Jam: The public is invited to celebrate Hawai‘i’s love for mango and island culture at the fourth annual
Mango Jam Honolulu. The FREE event will take place on Friday, June 29, from 4:30 p.m. to 9 p.m., and
Saturday, June 30, from 10 a.m. to 9 p.m. on the Frank F. Fasi Civic Center Grounds surrounding Honolulu
Hale.

a. Cost: Mango Jam is a free event.
b. Food: There will be a Barbeque Cook-Off.
c. Entertainment: Hiu noted that Kapena and Manao Company will be performing at the event.

Questions & Comments: Kapolei Regional Park: Wond thanked the Mayor for the improvements to the parks and
recreation areas. Stensrud asked about the gates on park bathrooms and noted that the welding boxes on the locks
are too small. Stensrud raised concerns about camping vagrants and noted that the field appears to be dry or dying.
Wond will take the information under advisement and report back as the Park Committee Chair.
Makakilo Drive Extension: Chair asked that Hiu report back to the Mayor and Hiu agreed.
Leeward Coast Benefits Package: A resident noted that the subsidies did not come from the Waimanalo Gulch and
stated that the money was allocated from the General fund. The resident noted that only Leeward children receive
these stipends. Wond asked for clarification on the stipend and the resident noted that the children did not pay before
but now must pay a 45 dollar activity fee. Chair Dudley asked and Wond responded that this issue will be handled in
conjunction with the Board in the future.

Spreg left the meeting at 9:06 p.m., six (6) members present.
Cullen returns to the meeting at 9:06 p.m., seven (7) members present.



Oahu’s Neighborhood Board system – Established 1973

MAKAKILO/KAPOLEI/HONOKAI HALE NEIGHBORHOOD BOARD NO. 34 WEDNESDAY, JUNE 27, 2018
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES PAGE 7 OF 7

Governor David Ige: No representative was present; a newsletter was distributed.

Honolulu Authority for Rapid Transit (Hart): Pat Lee gave the following updates and report:
The HOLO cards will be available to the general public early next year, and you will be able to get your card at any
of the 100 plus stores participating in our retail network, any Satellite City Hall, or at the bus customer service
center at 611 Middle Street.
Once the program starts, you can register your card and create an on-line account. Doing so will allow you to add
money on your card, monitor your card balance, or easily manage multiple cards for your family or group. It also
protects your account in case your card is lost or stolen; then your balance can be transferred to a new card.
There will be no regular fees or service charges for using the HOLO card, however there is a $2.00 one-time
charge for a new or replacement card, and a $2.75 minimum when you load or reload funds to your card.
You can also access HOLO from your web browser on your smart phone, but you don’t need a smart phone, bank
account or the internet to load money on your card.
When the cards become available, you can activate and load money on your HOLO card in several ways: at
holocard.net; by calling (808) 768-HOLO which is “768-4656”; at any of the over a hundred stores participating the
program, any satellite city hall, or at the bus pass office on Middle Street.
All existing passes will be available on the HOLO card. The current programs for youth, seniors, disability and those
on Medicaid, and other bus pass subsidies will be available on your HOLO Card by registering for those passes.
Everyone six years of age and above will need to have their own HOLO card.
The City DTS, OTS and HART are collaborating on the HOLO Card and will soon launch a pilot program to test the
new HOLO cards on the bus. Once that is completed and the program is in operation, the cards will become
available to the general public.
For more information on the rail project, please visit our website www.honolulutransit.org, you can call the project
hotline at 566-2299 or email a question to info@honolulutransit.org

Questions & Comments: Elevator Access: Capelouto asked whether the Waipahu Station near Don Quijote would
have elevator access for wheelchairs or the general public. Ferreira asked and Lee stated that the station will have
elevators and escalators. Lee noted that the station will submit to the Americans with Disabilities Act and include
hospital grade elevators.

Spreg returns to the meeting at 9:11 p.m. eight (8) members present.

Senator Mike Gabbard: A representative read a report; a handout was disseminated.
1. Kalaeloa Road Improvements: The project has been contracted from Monday, June 4, 2018 until

February 2019. The project will contain the re-servicing and re-asphalting the roads. The project will
operate between Monday and Friday from 8:30 a.m. until 5:30 p.m. and on nights and weekends when
needed. More details will be posted within Senator Gabbard’s July newsletter.

2. Kapolei Parkway Improvements: Work has started on the project to improve roadways in front of the
Kapolei Costco.

3. Kalaeloa Boulevard Improvements: The Kalaeloa Boulevard improvements were recently completed.
The 50 million dollar project began in 2015 and was completed by the James Campbell Company.

4. Listen Story: Senator Gabbard’s next Listen Story meeting will be held on Saturday, July 21, 2018 from
9:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. at Ewa Mahiko District Park.

Senator Maile Shimabukuro: No representative was present; no report was given.
State Representative Sharon Har: No representative was present; no report was given.
State Representative Andria Tupola: No representative was present; no report was given.
Hawaii Community Development Authority (HCDA): No representative was present; no report was given.
State Representative Ty Cullen: No representative was present; no report was given.
Councilmember Kymberly Pine: No representative was present; no report was given.

Chair Dudley adjourned the meeting at 9:15 p.m.

Submitted by: Chris Naylon, Neighborhood Assistant
Reviewed by:


